ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
April 15, 2011
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Alan Dick, Chair
Representative Eric Feige
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Scott Kawasaki

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Chris Tuck
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON( S) : BRI STOL BAY BOROUGH SCHOOL DI STRICT (BBBSD)
SUPERI NTENDENT

- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 143

"An Act providing an increase and an inflation adjustnment to the
base student allocation used in the formula for state funding of
public education; requiring a review and recomendation for
future adjustnments to the base student allocation; and providing
for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 145
“An Act establishing the parental choice scholarship program to
be adm nistered by school districts for the purpose of paying
the cost of attending grades kindergarten through 12 at public
and private schools; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2011



BILL: HB 143
SHORT TI TLE: ADJUST BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON: | NFLATI ON
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) PETERSEN

02/ 04/ 11 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 11 (H EDC, FIN

04/ 06/ 11 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 06/ 11 (H Heard & Held

04/ 06/ 11 (H M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 08/ 11 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 08/ 11 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 15/ 11 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JACK WALSH, Superi nt endent

Bristol Bay Borough School District (BBBSD)

Naknek, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a PowerPoint overview of the
Bristol Bay Borough School District.

REPRESENTATI VE PETE PETERSEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 143, as
t he sponsor of the bill.

DAVI D DUNSMORE, St af f

Representati ve Pete Petersen

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 143, on
behal f of the bill sponsor, Representative Pete Petersen.

CARL ROSE, Executive Director

Associ ation of Al aska School Boards (AASB)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 143.

BARB ANGAI AK, President

NEA- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 143.

PETE LEW S, Superi nt endent
Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 15, 2011



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 143.

LESLI E HAJDUKOVI CH, Board Menber

Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 143.

REPRESENTATI VE CHRI S TUCK

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during discussion of HB 143, as a
co-sponsor of the bill.

DON SM TH, Board Menber

Anchor age School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 143.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 05: 05 AM

CHAIR ALAN DICK called the House Education Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representatives Dick, P. WIson,
Cissna, and Seaton were present at the call to order.
Representative Feige arrived as the neeting was in progress.

8:05:54 AM

PRESENTATI ON(S): Bristol Bay Borough School District (BBBSD)
Superi nt endent

CHAI R DI CK announced that the first order of business would be a
presentation from the superintendent of the Bristol Bay Borough
School District (BBBSD).

8: 06: 23 AM

JACK WALSH, Superintendent, Bristol Bay Borough School District
(BBBSD), reported that the Bristol Bay Borough School D strict
served three comunities, Naknek, King Sal non, and South Naknek,
in Sout hwest Al aska. He presented a PowerPoint, titled "Bristol

Bay Borough School District."” [Included in nenbers' packets]
He discussed the district mssion, "To provide |earning
opportunities to all students, enabling them to secure the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 15, 2011



essential know edge and skills necessary to becone positive and
productive nenbers of society.” He pointed out that Bristol Bay
was the first Borough fornmed in Alaska, and an inportant
consideration was "to provide a quality education for all the
students that lived there and all the famlies that would nove
there one day." He discussed the upcomng district priorities,
noting that these were simlar to the past, and included
i nprovenent of student achievenent and performance, recruitnent
and retention of the best teachers wth a continuance of
prof essi onal developnment for all the staff, and expansion and
i nprovenent of the vocational and career planning prograns.

8:09:21 AM

MR. WALSH reviewed the progress of the students, pointing out
that the school district had attained the required Adequate
Yearly Progress (AYP). He reported that the Alaska Native
students, as a group, had achieved the highest |Ievel of
proficiency, 93 percent, anmong all districts during the past
school year, and 92 percent of the other students had achieved
proficient or above status during the prior year testing. He
proudly reported that the school district was one of the top
performng in the state. He stated that the graduation rate was
80 percent, and that the dropout rate was 2.7 percent. He
expressed that the district goal was for students to be better
prepared for life after high school

8:13:49 AM

MR. WALSH warned that, by the year 2014, AYP student proficiency
was required to be 100 percent. Each year the bar for
proficiency would be raised by seven percent, and it becane nore
difficult to attain each year. He allowed that math was a big
challenge for the district, and that science was well below
where the district would like it to be. He spoke about a two
year school district project with the National Science Resource
Center.

8:16: 27 AM

MR. WALSH described a slide titled "Bristol Bay Students,"” which
reflected the district student percentage of proficiency in
Language Arts and Math conpared to the state target. He pointed
out that math was an area that needed inprovenent.

8:18:13 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2011



MR. WALSH reported on the declining enrollment of communities in
rural Al aska, and stated that the BBBSD enrollnent, once over
300 students, was currently 160 students. He proudly described
the new clubs and activities, which included Future Educators of
Al aska, Running Cub, and other after school prograns. He
directed attention to the federal Native Education G ant which
supported cultural activities, summer school progranms, and a
school counsel or. He reported on sone of the vocational
prograns, which included culinary arts and auto work. He spoke
about the loss of the Head Start program but he described the
new pre-school prograns that had recently been started.

8:23:20 AM

MR. WALSH sunmarized, stating that the Bristol Bay Borough
School District regularly asked of itself: who we are, what we
do for children, and how we could be better. He stated that the
school district was always looking for ways to inmprove and to
provi de greater opportunities for children.

8:24:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked how the district handled the
rapid i ncrease in operational costs.

MR. WALSH replied that these were challenges over which the
district did not have control, but that staff and other budget
cuts had occurred. He spoke about cost saving neasures, such as
cost efficient lighting.

8:.26: 28 AM
CHAIR DI CK decl ared that the students appeared to be doing well
academ cally, and he asked what was attributed to this success.

He asked if a strong community work ethic was an indicator.

MR  WALSH agreed that it was a hard working, industrious
community, and that parents were engaged and acted as school

vol unt eers. He said that the famlies, the comunity, the
school staff, and the Borough Assenbly were all supportive of
t he school . He reported that nost of the famlies wanted the

children to be prepared for any post secondary opportunities
that woul d ari se.

8:28: 32 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i nquired about the structure of the pre-K
program and its percentage of participation.

MR. WALSH replied that it enulated the Head Start program and
that parents supported and pronoted home | earning. He pointed
to the involvenent with Inmagination Library and other prograns,
sharing that the school district was considering work w th Best
Begi nni ngs.

8:30: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what other programs had been
consi der ed.

MR. WALSH reported on a group of parent trainers from Southeast
Regi onal Resource Center (SERRC). He agreed that Parents as
Teachers and simlar progranms would al so be pursued in the near
future.

8:32: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA asked if there was a focus for the
education of locals so they would remain in the community.

MR. WALSH recounted the social work interns, student teachers,
and the Future Educators program as indicators of the progress
toward recruitnment within the conmunity.

8:34:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked about the classroom opportunities
for expanded |Ilocal prograns, such as value added to the
fisheries, energy devel opnent, or |ocal environnmental issues.

MR WALSH, in response to Representative G ssha, said that
fisheries had sustained the area for thousands of years, and now
the Pebble Mne Project and Shell G had becone sponsors of
educational forunms and opportunities. He spoke about the
alternative sources of energy at the school, and the search by
the local utility conmpany for a geo-thermal energy source.

8:39: 27 AM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA suggested that there be a focus on the

renewabl e resources in order to neke the community sustainable
for many years.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2011



8:40: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, addressing the graduation rate and its
sole focus on four year graduation, said that the quantitative
aspect, graduation rates which included five and six year
students, was also inportant to report to the commttee. He
prai sed the presentation by the Consortium on Digital Learning
(CDL) which had introduced the iPad as a learning tool, and he
suggested that the superintendent consider this approach.

MR. WALSH replied that the district was aware of the CDL. He
reported that two of his students taking the nobst recent
graduation test were in the md-thirties, and he recounted
stories of others in the comunity who were interested in
finally conpleting the high school graduation requirenents.

8:44: 22 AM

HB 143- ADJUST BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON: | NFLATI ON

CHAIR DI CK announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 143, "An Act providing an increase and an
inflation adjustnment to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; requiring a
review and recommendation for future adjustnents to the base
student allocation; and providing for an effective date."

8:45:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = PETE  PETERSEN, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
expl ai ned that the proposed bill would inflation proof
educat i onal fundi ng.

8:46: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there was a proposed anendnent to
be di stri but ed.

DAVID DUNSMORE, Staff, Representative Pete Petersen, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that the proposed anendnent
[Included in nenbers' packets] was in response to a concern
voiced by Representative Seaton wth regard to negative
fluctuations of the Consuner Price Index (CPl). He reported
that research had shown an increase in the CPlI for Anchorage
since 1962.

8:48: 40 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2011



CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), reflected that the issue of inflation proofing
had been around for quite sone tine. He shared an anecdote
regarding the beginning teacher salary of $13,000 in 1974. He
reported that, since that tinme, there were at |least four
foundation formula changes, which in turn changed the
calculations. At one tinme the instructional unit, calculated as
any portion of 15 students, was used. The school also received
instructional units for its operations, as part of a conplicated
cal cul ati on. He pointed out that the current fornula was based
on per student. He reported that the foundation forrmula had
changed, with a change of <calculation for «crediting school
sites. He detailed a change for Kenai in 1998, which resulted
in a drastic budget cut. He said that Senate Bill 36, in 1998,
had reflected a loss from inflation of alnost 35 percent over
the prior 25 years. After this bill was inplenented, there was
not an increase in the base student allocation for five years.
He said that from 1999 to present, there had been a 28.8 percent
loss in buying power. He called inflation "a thief in the night
that robs you blind," with a profound inpact. He pointed out
that inflation was not just annual, but had serious inpacts on

buyi ng power over tine. He explained the devastating inpact
from inflation when it was conbined with a change in the
foundation formula which did not catch up with inflation. He

stated support for HB 143 as a piece of the solution for schoo
f undi ng.

8:56: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA observed that nost legislators did not
easily grasp the econom c inpacts and effects of inflation.

8:57.:31 AM
MR. ROSE offered assistance to educate the |egislature. He

stated that the issue was not just about funding, but about
understanding the needs of the students and the school

districts. He reflected on the changes in the classroom over
the next ten years. He pointed out that technol ogy was | eading
education in a new direction. He opined that HB 143 shoul d

i ncl ude an annual review.

8:59:43 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON described the loss of 5,000 tinber jobs
in her district, and its inpact on school funding and teaching
j obs. She enphasi zed that funding had still not recovered.

9:02: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported that the consuner price index
(CPI') for Anchorage, the basis of the funding fornmula, was not
al ways correct in the adjustnent of the base student allocation
(BSA) for all school districts. He cautioned that only using an
inflation adjustnment would not adequately provide for the
schools as nmany progranms, including vocational prograns, were
not yet fully functional. He cautioned that, since 2001, the
school s woul d have been financially worse if there had only been
an adjustrment for inflation. He offered his belief that the
Anchorage CPI was not a sufficient gauge for financing
educati onal opportunities across Al aska.

9:06: 44 AM

MR. ROSE agreed that inflation proofing was only one conponent
necessary for school funding. He stated, however, that the
curmul ative effect was obvious, especially in hindsight, when it
was not addressed. He offered his belief that it was necessary
"to identify what those needs are, and appropriate accordingly.”
He stated that inflation proofing would not address "the needs
and the challenges that you have wth providing a quality
education for all the children of the state.” He announced that
the two necessary conponents for funding were inflation proofing
and neeting the student needs, which was the reason for the base
student allocati on.

CHAIR DICK agreed that it was necessary for the legislature to
connect with the teacher reality and to be mndful of "this
constant rem nder where we're just expecting superintendents to
perform magic. "

9:09: 02 AM

BARB ANGAI AK, President, NEA-Al aska, stated support for HB 143
with inflation proofing and increased BSA conponents. She
reflected on the excellent public education that her daughter
had received in Bethel, and she noted that many of these
progranms no |onger existed. She questioned the current focus
for nmeeting the guidelines of "an artificially set standard on a
test, instead of educating the whole child, instead of neeting

the needs of those children as they grow and as they devel op.”

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 15, 2011



She noted the loss of nusic and physical education instruction
in the schools. She agreed with the thene based teaching
approach and its ability to connect relationships of life and
cl assroom She opined that the insistence of obtaining a
product from an educational investnment was "going down a bad,
bad path." She stated the necessity of a greater investnent in
education for success to be realized.

9:15: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked if the educational investnent should
come solely fromthe state

M5. ANGAIAK replied that property taxes were an inportant
contribution, but that tax payers were not as big a beneficiary
of the investnent in education as the state.

M5. ANGAI AK, in response to Representative Feige, explained that
the state was the beneficiary of noney from oil and other
resource revenues while individual tax payers did not
necessarily reap those benefits.

9:16: 21 AM

CHAIR DI CK shared an anecdote about his early nusic classes and
expressed agreenent with the need for music and other prograns
for a good quality of life.

9:17: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for nore information regarding the
val uabl e effects of nusic on the brain.

9:17:31 AM

M5. ANGAI AK pointed to the research which showed an increase in
creative thoughts and | ogic when the arts were taught.

9:18: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON directed attention to other educationa
areas that were routinely cut, including the vocational
education and home econonics prograns. She offered her belief
that "the schools aren't doing a good enough job." She
expressed agreenent wth the difficulty as schools had to
continue to cut expenses. She pointed out that although overal

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 15, 2011



funding had been increased, all the schools had not necessarily
seen additional funds.

9:21:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked for recommendations as to which state
prograns should be decreased in order to increase school
f undi ng.

M5. ANGAIAK replied that "fundanentally, the nost inportant
investnment that the legislature makes is in educating our kids."
She declined to offer any suggestions for budget cuts.

9:23:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked if NEA-Al aska had spoken with the
muni ci palities regarding an increase of property taxes to fund
educati on.

M5. ANGAI AK replied that NEA-Al aska had regular comunication
with the state communities to ensure that funding for education
was the highest priority.

9:23: 48 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, pointing to page 2, line 3, asked whether

the stated CPI inflation proofing of 1.8 percent would cover the
general teacher contracts.

9:24:39 AM

M5. ANGAI AK, in response, said that the 1.8 percent did not
cover the contracts. She stated that Alaska had a difficult
time recruiting and retaining teachers. She reported that

Al aska needed about 900 teachers per year, and only produced
about 250-300 teachers. She said that the conpetition in the
teacher pool was with other states where the salaries were on
the rise, and the "cost of living is much, nuch |ower."

9:25: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he did not believe that the
teacher salaries were exorbitant. He explained that as proposed
HB 143 had January, 2010 as the reference base index for
inflation proofing, and that 85 percent of district costs were
salaries, it would be necessary to cover the contractua
i ncreases. He stated his concern for tying school funding to

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2011



inflation proofing, and indicated a need for the legislature to
add additional noney for contractual inflation to Kkeep the
school districts from "goi ng backwards every year."

9:27:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked if the contracts were nulti-year and
allowed for pay increases over the course of years. He asked if
there were provisions in the contracts that made the salary
agreenents contingent upon |egislative funding.

9:28:46 AM

M5. ANGAI AK replied that sonme contracts had provisions for re-
openers for limted purpose, which could include salaries.

9:29:17 AM

PETE LEW S, Superintendent, Fairbanks North Star Borough Schoo
District, stated support for HB 143, and said that doing nothing
would only result in falling further behind. He stated that the
BSA could "make a dent in inflation."

9: 30: 38 AM

LESLI E HAJDUKOVI CH, Board Menber, Fairbanks North Star Borough
School District, stated support for HB 143, and said that the
BSA was the nost inportant funding piece in their budget. She
encouraged the legislature to prioritize educational funding.

9:32:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CHRIS TUCK, Alaska State Legislature, explained
that he was a co-sponsor of the bill. He described the far
reaching effects of educational funding, as students eventually
become working nenbers of the comunity, as well as elected

of ficials. He pointed out that flat funding in education would
lead to the reduction in prograns. He indicated that career and
t echni cal education were inportant, requiring specialized
cl assroons, equipnment, and instructors. He spoke about the

i nfluence of Greek nmathematics on nodern architecture and nusic.
He opined that teachers were the inspiration for students to
beconme successful adults. He declared that the governor did not
include a budget item but that HB 143 would provide sonething
to the school districts.

9:38: 07 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN expl ai ned that another section of the
proposed bill required EED to conduct a study of the statew de
educational needs in order to provide an essential understanding
of what nore was needed for full funding of education.

9:39: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked about an earlier statute that
required a bi-annual EED report for suggested educational
adj ust nent s. She opined that this report had never been
witten.

9:40: 44 AM

[Due to technical difficulties, part of the testinony was not
recorded. ]

MR. DUNSMORE referred the committee to the fiscal note for HB
143, which required that the aforenentioned report be submtted.

9:41:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his concern for establishing an
actual cost paraneter, as sone school districts would have ot her
means of revenue.

9:42: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recognized that some districts would
contribute nore revenue for education, and that was the reason
for the differential funding.

9:43: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reflected on the need for the actual cost
of education per student in each district. He spoke of various
detail ed independent studies, none of which had been able to
determ ne the exact cost in each district, as school districts
woul d spend all the noney that they were given. He asked if
there were any other paraneters to the proposed study before it
was witten into the |egislation.

9:45: 14 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -13- April 15, 2011



MR. DUNSMORE explained that the intent was to review teacher
costs, energy costs, and other objective factors not considered
in the Anchorage CPI

9:46: 25 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON reported that she had recently
requested EED to provide school wutility costs and that the
informati on was avail abl e. She opined that the Institute of
Soci al and Econonmic Research (ISER) had indicated that $350, 000
was not enough to conplete a conprehensive study. She pointed
out that nobst superintendents kept sonme school district noney in
reserve for unexpected expenses.

9:49: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA, expressing her wonder at the scope of the
problems in the schools, questioned whether the bill addressed
long term outcomes throughout the state, or was nerely a
solution to sone of the inmediate issues which were only a smal
part of the problem

9:51: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN agreed that HB 143 was not a final
solution for educational problens, but he declared that the

proposed bill was "a short term stop gap neasure to keep the
lights on." He explained that HB 143 would also buy sone tine
for a study and the devel opnent of a |long term plan. He noted

that either EED or Legislative Legal and Research Services had
suggested the anount of the fiscal note.

9:53: 23 AM

CHAIR DICK offered his belief that there was a desire for the
success of education, and a willingness to fund for success, but
he stated that "No Child Left Behind is actually end up wth
Every Child Left Behind when it cones to nusic progranms, and art
and everything else." He opined that the |egislature wanted
better results, but the problem was that "the results are on a
track that is, really, nobody wants and nobody ever wanted.
It's becomng very sterile, very in the box, everybody's
teaching to the test, and it's really counterproductive to
everything that we all believe in."

9:55:10 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- April 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said that he would be anenable to a
conceptual anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that he had decided to not yet
offer a conceptual anendnment, but that one would be necessary
for a change in direction.

9:56:19 AM
DON SM TH, Board Menber, Anchorage School District, reported

that the Anchorage School District budget for 48,000 children
was $811.9 mllion. He reported that the budget would have to

increase by a mninmm of $30 nmillion in the upcom ng year, just
to cover salary and benefit increases to school district
enpl oyees. He expressed the need for an increase in the
investnment into technology in the classroom He pointed out

that these expenditures would need to cone from the operating
budget, as bonds would not cover short term products, such as

el ectronic tools. He suggested the creation of a $100 million
revolving loan fund for higher education and technol ogy
i nprovenents to school districts. He suggested that borrow ng

from such a fund wuld allow the inmediate purchase of
technol ogy, which would result in "an incredible change in
education.”

10: 00: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative G ssna,
pointed out that the lack of a quorum would not allow the bill
to be noved fromcommttee.

[ HB 143 was hel d over.]

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Educati on Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 10:01 a. m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 15- April 15, 2011



